FirstMaridian Business Services Limited

(formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)
Consoiidated Balance Shaet as at March 31, 2022

All amounts are ¥ in million unless otherwise stated

Particulars ":f;‘ As at March 31,2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Assels
1 [Non-current assets
a. Propesty, plant and equipment 3 102.75 90.59
b. Right-of-use asset 29.3 297.32 227.05
¢. Goodwill 4 800.14 440.06
d. Other intanglble assets 5 382.39 2595.38
e, Intanglble assets under devetopment 53 10.72 -
f. Flnancial assets 7 843.70 609,91
g. Deferred tax asset (net) 8 123,95 72.22
h. Mon-current tax assets {net) 572.33 374.35
1. Other non-current assets 9 2.57 0.B2
Totai non-current assets 3,135.87 2,110.38
2 |Current assets
a. Financial assets
i. Trade receivables 10 2,255.04 1,330.90
ii. Cash and cash equivalents 11 2,500.74 451.23
iif. Other bank balances 12 311.06 668.54
iv, Loans 5 1.00 0.20
v. Other financial assets 7 1,690.41 1,255.87
b. Current tax assets (net) - 315.50
c. Other current assets 9 134,37 62.13
Total current assets 6,892.62 4,124.37
Total assets 10,028.49 6,234.75
Equity and liabilities
Equity
a, Equity share capital 13 726,92 722.19
b. Other equity t4 3,257.90 1,563.78
Total equity 3,984.82 2,285.97
Liabilities
1 [Non-current liabilities
a. Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 15 5 1.26
ii. Lease liabllities 29.5 208.53 164.14
iii. Other financtal liabilities 16 53.83 122.78
b. Provistons 17 556.36 413.62
¢, Deferred tax liability (net) 8 120,77 181.42
Total non-current Habilities 939.49 883.22
2 |[Current liabilitias
a. Financial liabilities
i. Borrowings 15 602.74 75.94
. Lease liabilities 29.5 105.08 70.94
ili, Trade payables 18
-Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 21.79 12.04
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small
enterprises 328.74 172.11
tv. Other financial liabilities 16 2,684.14 1,760.44
b, Provisions 17 316.88 216,39
¢. Other current Habilities 19 1,044.81 757.70
Total current liabllitias 5,104.18 3,065.56
Total liabilities 6,043.67 3,948.78
Total aquity and liabilities 10,028.49 6,234.75

Slgnificant accounting policies
Notes forming part of consalidated Finanaical Statements
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FirstMeridian Businass Services Limited

{formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are ¥ in million unless otherwise statad

Note For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
I |Income
Revenue from operations 20 28,621.23 21,102.86
Other income 21 72.53 138.90
Total income (I) 28,693.76 21,241.76
II |Expenses
Purchase of traded goods 20.87 -
Employee benefits expense 22 27,048.65 20,112.88
Finance costs 23 42,34 29,12
Depreciatlon and amortisatlon expense 24 375.58 765.49
Other expenses 25 977.90 630.41
Total expenses (II) 28,465.34 21,537.90
IIT |Profit/{loss} before tax (I- IT) 228.42 {296.14)
IV |Tax expenses 26
Current tax 73.87 33.88
Deferred tax (credit)/charge {186.37) 6.54
Total tax expense (IV) (112.50) 40.42
Vv |Profit/(toss) for the year (III- IV) 340.92 {336.56)
VI |Other comprehensive income
Itams that will not be reclassified subsequently to Consolidated Profit or
Loss
- Galn on remeasurements of the defined benefit plans 9.80 7.30
- Income tax effect on above {2.82) {1.73)
VII |Total comprehensive income for the year (V4+VI) 347.90 £{330.99)
VIIX |Earnings per equity share 27
Basic {In ) 4.67 (4.66}
Diluted {In ¥) 4.53 (4.66)
Sigrificant accounting policies 1-2
Notes forming part of consolidated Finanalcal Statements 3-43
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FirstMeridian Business Services Limited

(formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)
Consolidatad Statemant of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are ¥ in million unless otherwise stated

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year endad
March 31, 2021

A. Cash flows from operating activitias
Profit{{loss} for the year before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreclation and amortisation expense
Gain on account of early termination of leases
Interest Income
Net {gain)floss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Finance costs
Provision no longer required written back
Provision for doubtful trade and other receivables including bad debts written off
Employee stock option amortisation {net of forfeiture}
Met loss/(gain) arising on fair valuation/settlement of put liability
Oparating profit before working capitat changes
Movements in working capital:
(Increasa)/ Decrease i assets ;
Trade receivables
Other assets
Increase/ (Decrease) In Habilities :
Trade and other payables
Provisions and other ltabillties
Cash generated from operations

Income taxes refund received
Nat cash generated from operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible including ¢apital advances

Purchase consideration paid net of cash acquired/ cash pald towards settlement of put
liability

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Bank deposits having original maturity of more than three months

Interest Income

Net cash used in investing activities (B)

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds/{repayment) from borrowing

Payment of lease llabilities including interest payments

Share application money pending allotment

Share Issue axpenses {refer note 14.1)

Interest paid

Net cash generated/(used in) from financing activitias {C)

MNet increase/ {decrease} in cash and cash equivalents {A)}+{B)+(C}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 12)

228.42 {296.14)
375.58 765.49
{1.01) (2.20)
(53.81) {101.68)
{1.57) 3.17
42,34 29.12
(7.70) {12.26)
12.65 13.42
99.55 10.19
38.17 {12.84)
732.62 396,27
(829.45) 224.54
(643.89) (805.94)
79.64 (4.41)
1,142,82 291.26
481,74 101.72
109.58 366.27
591,32 467.99
{86.55) (77.07)
{(497.96) (278.58)
35.85 11.41
357.48 {196.46)
46.49 34.90
{144.569) {505.80)
494,85 (148.22)
(109.09) {89.83)
1,199.26 B
(3.38) -
(18.77) (11.79)
1,562.88 (249.84)
2,009.51 (287.65)
491.23 778.88
2,500.74 491.23

Significant accounting policies
Notes forming part of conselidated Finanaical Statements
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FirstMeridian Business Services Limited
{Formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i.Corporate Information

FirstMeridian Business Services Limited (formerly known as “FirstMeridian Business Services
Private Limited”} (the *Company” “Parent Company” or "FMB") was originally incorporated as
a private limited company on February 20, 2018 is converted into a public limited company
on February 01, 2022 with Company Identification No: U74999MH2018PLC371978.

The status of the Parent Company is changed from private limited to a public company, and
pursuant to the provisions of Section 18 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 33 of the
Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014, as amended, the name of the Parent Company is
changed from “FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited” to “FirstMeridian Business
Services Limited” with effect from February 01, 2022,

The Holding Company is engaged in business of providing management advisory services and
staffing services., The Company is a subsidiary of Manpower Solutions Limited (Ultimate
Holding Company) with effect from February 20, 2018. The registered office of the Company
is located at 501, Jollyboard Tower-1, I Think Techno Campus, Kanjurmarg (East), Mumbai
400042,

The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared for the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as the “Group”.

| Name of the % of holding as at Country Principal activity
subsidiary #
March March
31, 2022 | 31, 2021
Innovsource Facilities 100% 100% India Facility Management Services
Private Limited
Innovsource Services 100% 100% India Manpower supply services
Private Limited
V5 Global Services 100% 100% India Manpower supply services
Private Limited(™V5™)
Affluent Global 100% 81.3%## India Technology Services
Services Private
Limited("Affluent™)
Linktag Global | 100% of 100% of India Technology Services
Services Private | Affluent Affluent
Limited*
CBSI India Private 100% 100% India Technology Services
Limited
Rlabs Enterprise | 75%## NA India Technology Services
| Services Limited

* Merged with Affluent Global Services Private Ltd effective April 1, 2021

#Principal place of business / country of incorporation

## The Group has classified the shares held by the NCI shareholders as financial liability as
mentioned in the share purchase agreement (SPA) between the Group and the NCI holders,
where the Group has an obligation to pay purchase consideration toythe NCI shareholders on
transfer of shares held in the subsidiaries. '




FirstMeridian Business Services Limited
{Formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Basis of preparation, measurement and significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation and measurement

The Group’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS')
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and amendments
thereto issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013.
In addition, the guidance notes/ announcements issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI) are also applied except where compliance with other statutory
promulgations requires a different treatment. These financial statements have been approved
for issue by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on August 08, 2022.

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group comprises of the Consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other
Comprehensive Income}, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2022 and the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies and explanatory notes (collectively, the *Consolidated Financial
Statements).

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees "INR" or "¥" and all
values are stated as INR or Z million, except when otherwise indicated.

b. Principles of consolidation
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Parent. Control exists when the parent has power over
the entity, is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns by using its power over the entity. Power is demonstrated
through existing rights that give the ability to direct relevant activities, those which significantly
affect the entity's returns. The financial statements of the subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date on which control commences until the date on
which the control ceases.

Subsidiaries are consolidated by combining like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its subsidiaries. The intra-company balances
and transactions including unrealized gain / loss from such transactions are eliminated upon
consalidation. The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared by adopting uniform
accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and are
presented to the extent possible, in the same manner as the parent company’s separate financial
statements unless stated otherwise,

Non-controlling interests (NCI):

NCI are measured at their proportionate share of the gcauiree’s net identifiable assets at the
date of acquisition.




FirstMeridian Business Services Limited
{Formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity
holders of the parents of the Group and to the non-controlling interest, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests have a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s equity interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions.

When the Parent loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary, and any related NCI and other components of equity. Any interest retained in the
former subsidiary is measured at fair value at the date the control is lost. Any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.

In case where the Group has written a put eption with NCI in an existing subsidiary on their
equity interest in that subsidiary then the Group evaluates access to the returns associated with
the ownership interest. In case NCI still have present access to returns associated with the
underlying ownership interest, then the Group has elected to account for put option as per the
anticipated-acquisition method. Under the anticipated-acquisition method the put option is
accounted for as an anticipated acquisition of the underlying NCI, This is independent of how the
exercise price is determined (e.g., fixed or variable)} and how likely it is that the option will be
exercised. Subsequent to initial recognition, any changes in the carrying amount of the NCI
liability is accounted through Consolidated Statement of profit and loss account.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum
of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised in
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised
at their fair value, except that deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related
to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12
‘Income Taxes’ ("Ind AS 12") and Ind AS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’ ("Ind AS 19”) respectively.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’'s previously held
equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

In case of a bargain purchase, before recognizing a gain in respect thereof, the Group determines
where there exists clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the business
combination as a bargain purchase. Thereafter, the Group reassesses whether it has correctly
identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assurmned and recognises any additional
assets or liabilities that are identified in that reass@:. The Group then reviews the




FirstMeridian Business Services Limited
{Formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

the bargain purchase. If the gain remains after this reassessment and review, the Group
recognizes it in other comprehensive income and accumulates the same in equity as capital
reserve. If there does not exist clear evidence of the underlying reasons for classifying the
business combination as a bargain purchase, the Group recognizes the gain, after reassessing
and reviewing (as described above), directly in equity as capital reserve.

Transaction costs that the Group incurs in connection with a business combination such as,
finder's fees, legal fees, due diligence fees, and other professional and consulting fees are
axpensed as incurred.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if
any, is recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss. Amounts arising frem interests in
the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to Consolidated Statement of profit or loss where such
treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed-off.

Common control

Business combinations involving entities that are uitimately controlled by the same parties before
and after the business combination are considered as common control entities. Common control
transactions are accounted using pooling of interest method. The Consolidated Financial
Statements in respect of pricr periods have been restated from the period that the Transferor
Company became a subsidiary of the Transferee Company where the assets and liabilities of the
transferee are recorded at their existing carrying values, the identity of reserves of the transferee
company is preserved.

c. Current versus non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet based on current/
non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
i.  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,
ii. Held primarily for the purpose of trading.
iii. Expected to be reallsed within twelve months after the reporting period, or
iv.  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current,

A liability is current when:

i. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle.
ii.  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
ii. It is due to be settled within twelve months afte

o W

e reporting period, or




FirstMeridian Business Services Limited
(Formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

lv.  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. Advance tax
paid is classified as non-current assets.

d. Operating cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company's
normal operating cycle and other ¢criteria set out in the Schedule III to the Companles Act 2013.
Based on the nature of services and the time taken between acquisition of assets for processing
and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the Group has ascertained its operating cycle
as twelve months for the purpose of the classification of assets and liabilities into current and
non-current,

e. Basis of measurement
Basis of accounting

The Group maintains its accounts on accrual basis following historical cost convention, except
for certain assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in accordance with Ind AS. Fair
value measurements are categorised as below based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety:

i Level 1 inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities that the Group can access at measurement date;

i Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included in level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

iii, lLevel 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the valuation of assets or liabilities.

Above levels of fair value hierarchy are applied consistently and generally, there are no transfers
between the levels of the fair value hierarchy unless the circumstances change warranting such
transfer,

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the
following notes:

- Financial instruments
- Share-based payment arrangements

f. Use of estimates and judgements

In preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements, management has made judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the applicati n,o‘fﬁccou ting policies and the reported




FirstMeridian Business Services Limited
{Formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised prospectively in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss in the year in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:

i. Determination of useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangibles;
{Note 2.2(a))

il Impairment test of non-financial assets (Note 2.2(c))

bii. Recognition of deferred tax assets; (Note 2.2(m))

iv, Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies; {Note 2.2(f)}
. Fair vatue of financial instruments (Note 2.2 (d))

vi. Impairment of financial assets (Note 2.2 (d))

vit. Measurement of defined benefit obligations; {(Note 2.2(i)

viii.  Fair valuation of employee share options; (Note 2.2(j))

2.2 Significant accounting policies
a. Property plant and equipment

Recognition and measurement:

Items of property, plant and equipment, other than freehold land are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Freehold land is carried at cost and is not depreciated. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase
taxes (after deducting trade discounts and rebates), any directly attributable costs of bringing
the asset to its working condition for its intended use and estimated costs of dismantiing and
removing the item and restoring the item and restoring the site on which it is located.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included In
profit or loss when the item is derecognised,




FirstMeridlan Business Services Limited
{(Formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Subsequent expenditure:

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and that the cost of the item can be reliably measured.

The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when
replaced, All other repair and maintenance are charged to the Consoclidated Statement of profit
and loss during the reporting yvear in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment, other than leasehold improvements, is provided
under the straight-line method in the manner prescribed under Schedule II of the Act, except in
the following case where the life is different than as indicated in Schedule II of the Act which is
based on the technical evaluation of useful life carried out by the management:

Particulars Economic Useful Life of
property, plant and
equipment (Years)

Furniture & Fixture* 3-5 years

*Useful lives of furniture and fixtures is lower than those indicated in Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013 based on management estimate and technical assessment made by a
technical expert.

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the tenure of lease term.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate,

b. Intangible assets
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of
acquisition of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any. For the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units {or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually,
or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any
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Other intandibie assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated intangibles, excluding eligible
development costs are not capitalized and the related expenditure is reflected in the Consolidated
Statement of profit and loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred.

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets using the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives and is recognised in profit or loss.

The estimated useful lives as mentioned below:

Description of the asset Estimated Useful Life {Years}
Computer Software 3
| Customer relationship 3-12

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial
vear and adjusted if appropriate.

¢. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an individual asset (or where applicable, that of cash generating unit
{CGU} to which the asset belongs) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset (or CGU).

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of profit
and loss.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not subsequently reversed. In respect of other assets
for which impairment loss has been recognised in prior periods, the Group reviews at each
reporting date whether there is any indication that the loss has decreased or no longer exists.
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. Such a reversal is made amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss ha¢d been recognised.
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d. Finmancial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial instruments also include
derivative contracts.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets other than those measured subsequently at fair
value through profit and loss, are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For the pumose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following
categories:

e  Amortised cost,
¢ Fair value through profit {(FVTPL)
+ Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

on the basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Amortised cost:

A financial instrument is measured at the Amortised cost if both the following conditions are
met:

- The asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

- Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Group applies Expected Credit Loss ("ECL") model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets measured at Amortised
cost and debt instruments measured at FVOCI.

Loss allowances on trade receivables are measured following the ‘simplified approach’ at an
amount equal to the lifetime ECL at each reporting date. In respect of other financial assets, the
loss allowance is measured at 12-month ECL only if 2 i igni iop-in-the
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credit risk since initial recognition of the asset or asset is determined to have a low credit risk at
the reporting date.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabllities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a party te the contractua!
provisions of the instrument,

Financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit and loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue,

Subsequent measurement

Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the classification of the respective
financial liabilities.

Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL):

A financial liability is classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) If it is classified as
held-for trading or is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value and changes therein, including any interest expense, are recognised in
Consolidated Statement of profit and loss.

Financial Liabilities at Amortised cost:

After initial recognition, financial liabilities other than those which are classified as FVTPL are
subsequently measured at Amortised cost using the effective interest rate (*EIR") method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The Amortisation done using the EIR method is included as
finance costs in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original llability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet if there is a currently enforceabld legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basjs, oif to realize the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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e, Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Consolidated balance sheet and Consolidated cash flow
statement includes cash at bank, cash, cheque, draft on hand and demand deposits with an
original maturity of less than three months, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value,

f. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

A provision is recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be
made. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current
management estimates.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting
the expected future cash flows specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is
recognised as finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events,
but their existence is confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity. Contingent assets are not recognised till the realization
of the income is virtually certain. However, the same are disclosed in the Consolidated Financial
Statements where an inflow of economic benefit is probable.

g. Revenue recognition

The Group derives revenue primarily from General Staffing and Allied Services, Global
Technology Solutions and Other HR services,

Revenue js measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it
transfers control over service to a customer. The method for recegnising revenues and costs
depends on the nature of the services rendered.

Revenue on time-and-material contracts are recognised as the related services are rendered and
revenue from the end of the last invoicing to the reporting date is recognised as unbilled revenue.

Revenue from fixed-price, fixed time frame contracts, where the performance cbligations are
satisfied overtime and where there is no uncertainty as to measurement or collectability of
consideration, is recognised as per the percentage-of-completion method. When there is
uncertainty as to measurement or ultimate collectabllity, revenue recognition is postponed until
such uncertainty is resolved. Efforts or costs expendfa ave been used to measure progress
towards completion as there is a direct relationship bet -
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Revenues in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets (referred to as unbilled revenue)
while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as contract liabilities (referred to as income
received in advance).

a) General Staffing and Allied Services:

Revenue from staffing services i.e., salary and incidental expenses of temporary associates along
with services charges are recognised in accordance with the agreed terms as the related services
are rendered. The Group acts as a principal for general staffing and allied services on such
arrangements with customers and hence recognises the revenue on gross basis. Refer note ]
“Employee benefits” for policy relating to defined benefits.

b} Giobal Technology Solutions

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised services to customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those services.

¢) Other HR services

Revenue from permanent recruitment services is recognised in accordance with the agreed terms
as the related services are rendered.

h. Other income

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured at Amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate which exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset. When calculating the EIR the Group estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayments,
extensions, call and similar options); expected credit losses are considered if the credit risk on
that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition.

Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss on the date on which
the Group's right to receive payrment is established.

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Group incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing
costs are charged to Consolidated Statement of profit ay’g}lss.
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j. Empioyee benefits

(i). Short-term Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries, bonus and ex gratia including non-monetary benefits that are
expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employees render the related service are classified as short-term employee benefits and are
recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Statement of profit and loss as the related service
is provided.

The employees of the Group are entitled to compensated absences. The employees can carry
forward a portion of the unutilised accumulating compensated absences. The Group records an
obligation for compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services
that increases this entitlement. The obligation is determined by actuarial valuation performed by
an independent actuary at each balance sheet date using projected unit credit method.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee
and the obligation can be estimated reliabiy.

(i) Share-based payments

The cost of equity settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the grant date which is
based on the Black Scholes model. The determination of the fair value requires significant
assumptions and judgements related to business projections, terminal growth, and weighted
average cost of capital. The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognised
as an employee expense, with a corresponding Increase in equity under "Employee Stock Options
reserve”, over the period that the employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. The
expense is recorded separately for each vesting portion of the award as if the award, in
substance, was multiple awards.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is
the expense had the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the awards are met.
An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

(iii) Post-Employment Benefits
Defined Contribution Plans:

A defined contribution plan ts a post-employment benefit plan under which a Group pays
specified contributions to a separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts.
The Group makes contribution to provident fund in accordance with Employees Provident Fund
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and Employee St/ar{a Insurance. Contribution paid or
payable in respect of defined contribution plan is recognl an expense in the year in which
services are rendered by the employee. BE g
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Defined Benefit Plans:

The Group's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The liability is recognised in the
balance sheet in respect of gratuity is the present value of the defined benefit/obligation at the
balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised
actuarial gain losses and past service costs. The defined benefit/obligation are calculated at
balance sheet date by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets {(excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding
interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI).

During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Group has changed its accounting policy to present
component of defined benefit cost on net basis after considering right to reimbursement related
to such defined benefits. (refer note 37).

i. Leases

s 2 Lessee:

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an Identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the
Group assesses whether:

i. the contract involves the use of an identified asset

ii. the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and

iii. the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all
lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease uniess another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed,

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end
of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted by using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rate,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:
7
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» variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or
rate at the commencement date;

» the amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

s the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

» payments of penalties for terminating the iease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an
option to terminate the iease.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The lease
liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the iease payments made. The Group remeasures the lease liability {(and makes a corresponding
adjustrnent to the related right-of-use asset) whenever:

« the lease term has changed or there is a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate.

» the lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using the initial discount rate (unless the lease payments change is
due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

* a lease contract is modified, and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, in which case the lease liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate.

The right-of-use assets are presented as a separate line in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The
right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost which comprises of the initial measurement of
the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at or before the commencement day and
any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for
costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site on which it is located or restore
the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease, a
provision is recognised and measured. The costs are included in the related right-of-use asset,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset. If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-
of-use asset reflects that the Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the useful life of the under}ying asset. The depreciation starts at
the commencement date of the lease.
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m. Taxation

Income tax expense fincome comprises current tax expense fincome and deferred tax expense
/income. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it reiates to items recognised
directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. In which case, the tax is also recognised
directly in equity or other comprehensive income, respectively.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recoverable on the taxable profit or less for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or recoverable in respect of previous years. It
is measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered from) the taxation authorities
using the applicable tax rates and tax laws.

» Current tax assets and liabllities are offset only if, the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off the recognised amounts; and

s intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amount of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and the amount considered for tax purpose.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and
are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow the benefit of part or all of that deferred tax asset to be utilized such reductions
are reversed when it becomes probabie that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be recovered.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting year,

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liahilities are offset only if:

i} the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off ‘rent tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and
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ii} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on the same taxable entity.

n. Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions:

Foreign currency transactions are recorded on initial recognition in the functional currency using
the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised
in Consolidated Statement of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

o. Dividend

The Group recognizes a liability for any dividend declared but not distributed at the end of the
reporting year, when the distribution is authorized and the distribution is no longer at the
discretion of the Group on or before the end of the reporting year.

p. Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Group by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For
the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period
attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company and the weighted average number of
shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.

Q. Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) for the period is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past
or future operating cash receipts or payments and item of income or expenses associated with
investing or financing cash flows. Cash flows for the year are classified by operating, investing
and financing activities.

r. Segment reporting

Operating segments are those components of the business whose operating results are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision making body in the Group for the pumpose
of performance assessment and to make decisions for resource allocation.

The reporting of segment information in the Consolidgted, Financial Statements is the same
as provided to the management for the purpose of paffotmance asgessment and resource
allocation to the segments. '
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Segment accounting policies are in line with accounting policies of the Group. Revenue and
expenses have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating
activities and geographical operation of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to
the Group as a whole and are not allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been
included under "Unallocated corporate expenses/income”,

s. Exceptional Ttems

Exceptional items refer fo items of income or expense within the income statement from
ordinary activities which are material and non-recurring and are of such size, nature or
incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance
of the Group and to assist users of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

t. Recent accounting and other pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time,
On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Amendment
Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

i Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition
method, the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions
of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian
Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change
the requirements of Ind AS 103. The Group does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its Consolidated Financial Statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments has clarified the accounting treatment for ‘excess of net sale proceeds
of items produced over the cost of testing’. The excess of net sale proceeds of item
produced over the cost of testing, if any, should not be recognized in the statement of
profit or loss but should be deducted from directly attributable costs considered as part of
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment. The Group does not expect the
amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in
its Consolidated Financial Statements,

ili. Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling” a contract comprises the ‘costs
that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be
incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour materials) or
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is
essentially a clarification and the Group does not expect the amendment to have any
significant impact in its Consolidated Financial Statements.

iv. Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the *10 percent’ test
of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a {inancial liability. The Group does not

5’
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expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its Consolidated Financial
Statements.

v. Ind AS 11€ - Annual Improvements to Ind AS {2021)
The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements

by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives that might arise because of how lease Incentives were described in that illustration.
The Group does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Vﬁx




FirstMeridian Business Services Limited

(formeriy known as FirstMeridlan Business Services Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are T in million uniess otherwise stated

3 Property, plant and equipment

Data processing B

Particulars machines _"cﬂcﬁﬂ_.“:n Office equipment Vehlcles ma_wo..”ﬂﬂ_”.“n nts Building Total
{Computer)

Gross block
Balance as at April 01, 2020 50.07 18.35 37.59 13.73 5.28 14.85 139.87
Additions for the vear 35.37 18.15 6.47 = — - 59.99
Assets acquired through business combination (refer note 38) 0.26 0.01 0.13 = - - 0.40
Disposals for the year {0.66) {1.06) {0.63) - - {14.85) {(17.20)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 85.04 35.45 43.56 13.73 5.28 - 183.06
Additions for the year 41.74 4,30 9.82 - 4.96 - 60.82
Assets acquired through business combination (refer note 38) 2.06 = 0.14 0.58 - 29.93 32,71
Disposals for the year (9.0 {0.51) {3.89) {13.73) - {29.93) {57.08)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 119.82 39.24 49.63 0.58 10.24 - 219.51
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2020 22.99 7.45 16.78 5.74 1.96 0.57 55.49
Depreciation expense for the year 19.01 5.44 10.22 3.30 1.07 0.56 39.60
Eliminated on disposal of assets for the year {0.63) {0.33) (0.53) - - {1.13) {2.62)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 41.37 12.56 26.47 9.04 3.03 - 92.47
Depreciation expense for the year 26.41 7.20 9.21 2.53 1.50 0.25 47.10
Eliminated on disposal of assets for the year {(7.78) {0.20) {3.06) {11.52) - {0.25} {22.81}
Balance as at March 31, 2022 60.00 19.56 32.62 0.05 4.53 - 116.76
Net carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2022 59.82 19.68 17.01 0.53 5.71 - 102.75
Balance as at March 31, 2021 43.67 22.89 17.09 4.69 2.25 - 90.59

3.1 The Group does not hold any immovable property (other than properties where the Group is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the Group) whose title deeds are not held in the
name of the Group.

3.2 The Group has not revalued its property, plant and equipment during the year and therefore Schedule III disclosure requiremnents with respect to fair value details is not applicable. In the case of the assets
acquired on account of business combination the falr value of the asset acquired is equal to the cost of the asset and hence no revaluation has been performed as at the year end.

3.3 There are no impairment losses recognised during the year end.

3.4 For the year ended March 31, 2022, moveable plant and machinery of Innovsource Services Private Limited have been assigned {pari-passu) to ICICI Bank against the borrowing taken by Innovsource Services
Private Limited. {refer note 15 for details on borrowlnas)

3.5 Vehicles with a carrying amount of 2 Nil (as at March 31, 2021: % 4,69 million) have been pledged to secure borrowings,of the Group (refer note .3q details on borrowings)
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4 Goodwill

Particulars

Amount

Gross block

Balance as at April 01, 2020

Recognised on acqulsition of business (refer note 38)
Balance as at March 31, 2021

Recognised on acquisition of business (refer note 38)
Bajance as at March 31, 2022

Accumulated impairment loss
Balance as at April 01, 2020
Impairment loss for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2021
Impairment loss for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2022

Net carrying amount
Balance as at March 31, 2022
Balance as at March 31, 2021

396.93
43.13

440.06
360.08

800.14

800.14
440.06

4.1 Impairment of goodwill

Carrylng amount of goodwill is ¥ 800.14 million {March, 31 2021 is ¥ 440.06 million). This goodwill is acquired on account of business combination.

Goodwill Is monitored by management at each Cash Generating Units ("CGU") level as glven below:

Name of Cash Generating Unit As at March 31, 2022 |As at March 31, 2021
General Staffing and Allied Services 151.45 151.45
Global Technology Solutions 617.12 257.04
Other HR Services 31.57 31.57
Total 800,14 440.06

The recoverable amount of a CGU is based on its value in use. The value in use Is estimated using discounted cash flows over a period of 5 years.
We belleve 5 years to be most appropriate time scale over which to review and consider annual performance before applying a fixed terminal

value multiple to year end cash flow.

Operating margins and growth rates for the five year cash flow projections have been estimated based on past experience and after consldering
the financial budgets/ forecasts approved by management. Other key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out
below. The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the relevant Industries and have been

hased an histarlcal data from hoth external and internal snorces.

K umptions used in the value-in- Iculations

Assumptions

How determined

Budgeted EBITDA growth rate

Budgeted EBITDA has been based on past experience adjusted for the
following:

- Revenue in the Staffing service is expected to grow on account of planned
growth plan and industry expanslon In general. Revenue and EBIDTA are
factored by focused approach towards network expansion, operatlonal
efflclencies and inter group customner relationshlp synergles.

Terminal value growth rate

Long-term growth rate used for the purpose of calculation of terminal value
has been determined by taking Into account nature of business, long term
inflation expectation and long term GDP expectation for the Indian
economy.

Pre-tax risk adjusted discount rate

The discount rate applied to the cash flows of the Group's operations is
generally based on the risk free rate for ten year bonds Issued by the
govemment in India. These rates are adjusted for a risk premium to reflect
the systematic risk of the Group.

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022|As at March 31, 2021

Pre tax risk adjusted discount rate
Terminal value growth rate
Budgeted EBITDA growth rate

16.00% 14.00%
5.00% 5.00%
10-20% 15-25%

These assumptions are reviewed annually as part of management’s budgeting and strategic planning cycles. These estimates may differ from
actual results. The values assigned to each of the key assumptions reflect the Management’s past experience as their assessment of future trends,

and are consistent with extemal/intemnal sources of information.

The estimated recoverable value of CGU exceeds its carrying amount as at the yearend and therefore no impairment was recognised.

The Group has alse performed sensitivity analysis calculations on the projections used and discount rate applied. Given the significant headroom
that exists, and the results of the sensitivity analysis pgrformed, it is concluded that there is no signlificant risk that reasonable changes in any key

assumptions would cause the carrying value of goodwill 0/'(9 eed its

|

lue In use. {b\f:)“t\li{"shs.;s\




FirstMeridlan Business Services Limited

{formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for tha year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are T in million unless otherwise stated

5 Other intangible assets

Particulars Software rights _wn_qﬂ_.“mnhuﬂﬂm ﬂMMMﬁM.Hﬂ.._. Intellectual property Total

Gross block elationship

Balance as at April 01, 2020 28.63 37.849 1,880.91 9.82 1,957.20
Additions for the year 17.08 - 15.73 - 32.81
Assets acquired through business combination (refer note 38) - - 22.64 - 22.64
Balance as at March 31, 2021 45,71 37.84 1,919.28 9.82 2,012.65
Assets acquired through business combination (refer note 38) 0.01 - 301.05 - 301.06
Additions for the year 14.98 - - - 14.98
Disposals for the year (0.02) - - (9.82) {9.84)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 60.68 37.84 2,220.33 - 2,318.85
Accumulated amortisation

Balance as at April 01, 2020 18.78 7.56 1,036.33 9.82 1,072.49
Amortisation expense for the year 5.78 4.32 634.68 - 644.78
Balance as at March 31, 2021 24.56 11.88 1,671.01 9.82 1,717.27
Amortisation expense for the year 11.20 3.9 213.87 - 229.03
Eliminated on disposal of assets for the year {0.02) - - (9.82) {9.84)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 35.74 15.84 1,884.88 - 1,936.46
Net carrying amount

Balance as at March 31, 2022 24,94 22.00 335.45 - 382.39
Balance as at March 31, 2021 21.15 25.96 248.27 - 295.38

5.1 With effect from April 01, 2021 the Group has changed its estimate with respect to useful life of Customer Relationships pertaining to V5 Global Services Private Limited from 3 years to 7 years
prospectively, based on the expected benefits from the existing Customer relations, The change in estimate has decreased the charge of amortisation by 227.08 million for the year ended
March 31, 2022.

5.2 The Group has not revalued its intangible assets as at the yearend and therefore Schedule I disclosure requirements with respect to fair value details is not applicable,

5.3 Intangible assets under development
Particulars Amount

Balance as at April 01, 2020 -
Additions for the year -
Capitalisation during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 -
Additions for the year 10.72
Capitalisation during the year -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 10.72

{a) Intangible assets under development consists projects which are for periods less than one year.

{b) There are no projects as on reporting year where activity had been suspended. Also, there are no projects as on the reporting year which has exceeded cost as compa
where cornpletion is overdue.




‘AjlInoes Jo ssjuesent Suimaold 1o Supsaau| ‘Buipus| Jo asodind ay) Joy (SaueipatssIw) seppue ubielo) Bupnpow

‘Ajzue Jo wosiad Jaylo Aue 03 (SpuUny JO pUR 40 S22JN0S 1240 AUe J0 wnwaid IBYS 10 SPUN) PAMOLIOG JOYIR) SPUNy PRISIALL 1O paueg 10 paaueape 10U sey dnoun ayg ‘Jead fuppodss ay) BuunQ T°£

‘dneusy 3y Aq uosdad saulo Aue yim Apuiol

10 Alleaaass Jauye (10T ‘1Y sejuedwo) Japun paulsp se) saiued pajejal pue Sdigy ‘S1010841p ‘susjowiosd o) pajuest Sueo| JO BINJEU Bl U] SBDUBAPE JO SURO| OU BJ9M aJa] ‘Jedh Buodas sy Buung ¢- Z

L2'SST'T TP 069°T JejoL
0001 76T {poof pa2apIsSuod ‘paindasun) a|geAasdad JByi0
SO'E6T'T £8'909°T anuaAas pajIqQun
€21 TL9 sysodap paxy uo 152491U1 PanJIdYy
86'61 LE°LT {poob pauspisucs ‘paunaasun) sasiwald 1oy sysodaq
1502 8591
(££72) (ge'd) SJUBAPE [NGNOP JOI UDISINQL 1§53
€8T €T INAQNoP PAIIPISUOY ‘paUnIvsun-
15702 85°0T poof paiapIsuol ‘patniasun-
saaiojdw2 o] 3usApy
uBLIND
16609 0L EP8 jejol
697855 85798 soussqe pajesuadulod pue Aunyeab ajqeasunquial splemod Jybry
2218 21'ss
(1z°8T) (8g°0z} $SUSOAIP NAGNOP 10) UCISIAGL 1553
TZ'8T 85°0¢ INJqNOp pauspisuod ‘paindasun-
ZZ'IS 21745 poob pasepisucd ‘paJnlasun-
sasiwaad 10y psodag
JUBLIND=UON
TZ0T TToT
‘TE YOIEH 3@ SY IE Yodel ' SY sie|nojsed
5)95SE |euUeUl] £
0z'0 00t jeiol
= 00T SIDIUBRAPE PUE SUBODT
0z’0 - sueo) ys
poob pa1apisu0d ‘paindasuf
waund
TZT0T [44,74
1€ YodeM I8 SY ‘I€ yosen Je sy siejnopaed
SuUeo] 9

PPIe1S SSIMISLI0 SSDUN UOJ|IW U} 3 DI SJUNOWE ||y

ZTOT ‘T Yo1eW papus Jesl Y3 J0) SIUDLIBIES [RIOURUL PRIEPI|OSUOD BY) 03 SBION
{peir 2RALId SPOIAIDS SSaUSNY URIPIIDWISIIY SE UMOU)Y AJMOILIOY)

PoWI] SSOIAIDS SSILISNE URIPLISWISIL]



FirstMeridian Business Services Limited

{formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are T in million unless otherwise stated

8 Deferred tax

8.1 Closing deferred tax balances:

8.2

8.3

: As at March 31, As at March 31,
Particulars 2022 2021
Deferred tax asset (net) 123.95 72.22
Deferred tax liability {net) {120.77) (181.42)
Deferred tax asset/ (liability) (net) 3.18 (109.20)

Movement in deferred tax balances

For the year ended March 31, 2022
- Addition through .
Esiticulars Opening balance business ¢ wmnooqw_w.ﬂ_u.h. profit Recognised in OCI Closing balance
combination
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits {net of reimburseable rights) 75.08 1.64 9.67 (2.82) 83.57
Property, plant and equlpment (188.11) 0.71 {3.79) - (191,19}
Lease liabilities and right-to-use assets 1,79 0.87 0.39 - 3.05
Provision for doubtfu! debts 22.63 1.35 2.18 ~ 26.16
Unabsorbed losses 1.28 - {1.28) - -
Impact of deduction of section 80JJAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 35.24 - 128.86 - 164.10
Customner relationship {59.53) (75.74) 52.51 - (82.76)
Others 2.42 - (2.17) - 0.25
Net deferred tax asset/(liabilities) (net) {109.20) (71.17) 186.37 (2.82) 3.18
Movement in deferred tax balances
For the year endedMarch 31, 2021
. >nn_=u.o._.. through ] ]
Rarsiculare Opening balance noaw—“.ﬂnm_.ﬂﬂwnn refer _annou.”wﬂ._n”. profit Recognised in OCI Closing balance
note 40)
Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) in relation to:
Provision for employee benefits (net of reirnburseable rights) 79.93 2.32 {5.44) (1.73) 75.08
Property, plant and equipment {93.71) 0.35 (94.75) - {188.11)
Lease liabilities and right-to-use assets 2.19 (0.15) {0.25) - 1.79
Provision for doubtful debts 15.80 2.20 4.63 - 22.63
Unabsorbed losses - - 1.28 - 1.28
Impact of deduction of section 80JJAA of Income Tax Act, 1961 25.17 = 10.07 = 35.24
Customer relationship {129.43) {5.70) 75.60 - {59.53)
Others 0.10 - 2.32
Net deferred tax asset/(liabllities) {(net) {99.95) (0.98) \ {6.54)

v




FirstMeridian Business Services Limited

{formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

All amounts are € in million unless otherwise stated

9 Other assets

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2022 2021
Non-current
Capital advances (Unsecured, considered good) 2,57 0.82
Total 2.57 0.82
Current
Prepaid expenses {unsecured, considered good} 85.28 46,39
Balances with government authorities 7.88 0.48
Advance to suppliers
- unsecured, considerad good 9.11 3.97
- unsecured, considered doubtful 0.98 1.58
Less: Provision for doubtful advance {0.98) (1.58)
9.11 3.97
Qther receivables*

- unsecured, considered good 32.10 11.29
- unsecured, considered doubtful 2.70 2.70
Less: Provision for doubtful assets {2.70) {2.70)

32.10 11.29
Total 134,37 62.13

*The Company filed its Draft Red Herring Prospectus with Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) on May 11, 2022 for a
proposed Initial Public Offering (IPO) of Its equity shares. Rs. 23,51 milllion includes recoverable from selling shareholders to the
extent of their share of expense and balance to be written off against the retained eaming / securities premium account at the

time of issue of shares in accordance with the Companies Act, 2013.

10 Trade recelvables

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2022 2021
Unsecured, considered good 2,255.04 1,330.90
Unsecured, credit impaired 79.77 67.18
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowances) (79.77) (67.18)
Total 2,255.04 1,330.90

10.1 There are no dues from directors or other offlcers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, due from
firms or private companies respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

10.2 The average credit period is upto 60 days. No Interest is charged on trade receivables.

10.3 Trade receivables of Innovsource Services Private Limited, V5 Global Services Private Limited, Affluent Global Services Private
Limited and CBSI India Private Limlted have been assigned (pari-passu) to Standard Chartered Bank against the borrowing

taken by the group entities. (refer note 15 for details on borrowings)

10.4 For the year ended March 31, 2022, trade receivables of Innovsource Services Private Limited have been assigned (pari-passu)
to ICICI Bank against the borrowings taken by Innovsource Services Private Limited. (refer note 15 for details on borrowings).

10.5 Movemaent of allowance for doubtful debts (expected ceredit loss allowances)

Particulars

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

2022 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 67.18 52.22
Addition on account of business combination 5.32 8.67
Allowance for doubtful debts (expected credit loss allowances) 7.27 6.29
Balance at the end of the year 79.77 67.18
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FirstMeridian Business Services Limited

(formerly known as FirstMerldlan Business Servicas Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are ¥ In milllon unless otherwlse stated

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Balances with banks
- In current account 1,636.44 104.48
- In deposit accounts - orlginal maturity of three months or less 864.30 386.75
Total 2,500.74 491.23
11.1 There are no repatration restrictlons with regards to cash and cash equivalents as at the year end.
12 Other bank balances
Particuiars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Deposits with original maturlty of more than three months and less than 12 months 311.06 658,54
Tokal 311.06 668,54

13 Equity share capital

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Authorised share capital
12,50,00,000 (March 31, 2021: 9,02,93,460) equity shares of ¥ 10/- each 1,250.00 502,94
1ssued, subscribed and fully pald-up share capital
7,26,52,170 (March 31, 2021: 7,22,19,134) equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully pald-up 726.92 722.19
Total 726.92 722.19

13.1 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:
Particulars Numbers Amount
Balance as at April 01, 2020 72,219,134 722.19
Add:- additional shares (ssued durlng the year - -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 72,219,134 722.19
Add:- additlonal shares 1ssued during the perlod - -
Balance as at December 31, 2021 72,219,134 722,19
Add:- additlonal shares Issued during the year 473,036 4.73
Balance as at March 31, 2022 72,692,170 726.92

13.2 Terms right attached to the equlty shares

The Company has only ane class of equity shares having par value of ¥ 10 per share. Each holder of equity is entitled to ene vote per share. In the event of liquidation of
the Company, the holders of equity share will be entltled to recelve any of the remalning assets of the Company, after distributlon of alk the preferential amounts. The

distrlbution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

13,3 Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

As at March 31, 2022

Particulars Number of shares | % holding of equity
held shares

Fully pald equity shares

Manpower Solutlons Limited {Holding Company} 64,276,359 83.42%

New Lane Trading LLP 4,548,532 6.26%

Seedthree Trading LLP 3,867,279 5.32%

As at March 31, 2021

Particulars Number of shares % holding of equity
held shares
Fully paid aquity shares
Manpower Solutlons Uimited (Holding Company) 64,276,359 89.00%
New Lane Trading LLP 4,548,532 65.30%
13.4 Shareholding of promoters
Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2022
% change during the
Promoter name No. of Shares % of total shares |year ended March 31,
2022

Manpower Solutions Limited {Holding Company) 64,275,359 88.42% (0.58%)
Shares held by promoters as at March 31, 2021

1| % change during the
Fromoter name No. of Shares % of total shares | year ended March 31,
Manpower Solutions Uimited (Holding Company) 64,276,359 B9.00%: 0.00%

e




FirstMeridian Business Services Limited
(formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

All amounts are € in million unless otherwise stated

14 Other equity

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 |As at March 31, 2021
Researves and Surplus

Securities premium reserve 2,511.77 2,464.36
Retained eamings (568.36) (916.26)
Share option outstanding account 115.23 15.68
Share Application money pending allotment 1,199.26 -
Total 3,257.90 1,563.78

14.1

Securities premium reserve

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,464.36 2,464.36
Shares issued during the year 50.79 =
Less: Share issue expenses (3.38) -
Balance at end of the year 2,511.77 2,464.36

Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classified as securities premium reserve, The reserve is
available for utilisation in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013,

The Cormpany has allotted 4,73,036 equity shares to Seedthree Trading LLP as a consideration for acquisition of 690 equity
shares of Affluent Global Services Private Limited on February 16, 2022 at a face value of ¥ 10 per share and issue price per

equity share of ¥ 117.38.

14.2 Retained earnings

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 |As at March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year {916.26) (585.27)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Group 340.92 (336.56)
Gain on remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (net of taxes) 6.98 5.57
Balance at end of the year {568.36)} {916.26)

The amount that can be distributed by the Group as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined

based on the separate

financial statement of the Company in this reserve and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013. Thus the
amounts reported above are not distributable in entirely. It includes impact of actuarial gains and losses on the funded obligation
due to change in financial assumptions, change in demographic assumptlon, experience adjustments, etc. recognised through

other comprehensive income,

14.2 Share Application money pending allotment

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Share Application money received during the year
Balance at end of the year

1,199.26

1,199.26

The Parent Company has raised funds via rights issue amounting to ¥ 1,200.00 million by offering 43,61,574 shares at a share
price of ¥ 275.13 per share, (including a share premium of ¥ 265.13 per share). The money received as at the yearend has been
classified as share application money received since there has not been any oversubscription with respect to the right issue of

shares and hence has been classified under other equity.

14.4 Share option outstanding account

i

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 |As at March 31, 2021
Balance at the beqinning of the year 15.68 5.49
Employee stock option amortisation (net of forfeiture) 99.55 10.19
Balance at end of the year 115.23 15.68

The reserve refated to share options granted by Parent Company to its and its subsidiaries employees share option plan. Further
information about employee stock optlon amortisation (net of forfeiture) to employees is set out in note 36.

14.5 The Group is compliant with the number of layers prescribed under clauge
{Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017},

(N

of sectiom 2 of the Act read with the c_:ompanies
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{formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limlted)
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
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14

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4 Share option outstanding account

14.5 The Group is compliant with the number of layers prescribed unde cla

Other equity

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Reserves and Surplus

Securitles premium reserve 2,511.77 2,464.36
Retained earnings (568.36) (916.26)
Share option outstanding account 115.23 15.68
Share Application money pending allotment 1,199.26 -
Total 3,257.90 1,563.78

Securities premium reserve

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 |As at March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,464.36 2,464.,36
Shares issued during the year 50.79 -
Less: Share issue expenses (3.38) -
Balance at end of the year 2,511.77 2,464.36

Amounts received on issue of shares in excess of the par value has been classif

ied as securities premium

available for utilisatlon in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013.

reserve, The reserve is

The Company has allotted 4,73,036 equity shares to Seedthree Trading LLP as a consideration for acquisition of 690 equity
shares of Affluent Global Services Private Limited on February 16, 2022 at a face value of ¥ 10 per share and issue price per

equity share of ¥ 117.38.

Retained earnings

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 |As at March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year {916.26) {585.27)
Profit/{loss) attributable to owners of the Group 340.92 {336.56)
Gain on remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (net of taxes) 6.98 5.57
Balance at end of the year {568.36) {916.26)

The amount that can be distributed by the Group as dividends to its equity shareholders is determined

based on the separate

financial statement of the Company in this reserve and also considering the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, Thus the
amounts reported above are not distributable in entirely. It includes Impact of actuarial gains and losses on the funded obligation
due to change in financial assumptions, change in demographic assumption, experience adjustments, etc. recognised through

other comprehensive income,

Share Application money pending allotment

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Balance at the beginning of the year
Share Application money received during the year

1,199.26

1,199.26

Balance at end of the year

The Parent Company has raised funds via rights issue amounting to Z 1,200.00 million by offering 43,61,574 shares at a share
price of ¥ 275.13 per share, (including a share premium of  265.13 per share). The money received as at the yearend has been
classified as share application money received since there has not been any oversubscription with respect to the right issue of

shares and hence has been classified under other equity.

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 |As at March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 15.68 5.49
Employee stock option amortisation (net of forfeiture) 99.55 10.19
Balance at end of the year 115.23 15.68

The reserve related to share options granted by Parent Company to its and its subsidiaries employees share option plan. Further
information about employee stock option amortisation (net of forfeiture) to amployees is set out in note 36.

)se (87)

L

{Restriction on number of Layers} Rules, 2017).
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ction 2 of the Act read with the Companies




FirstMeridian Business Services Limited
{formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

All amounts are € in mlllion unless otherwise stated

15 Borrowlings

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Non-current:

Secured

Vehicle loans (refer note 15.1)

Less: Current maturities of long term loans

Total

Currant:

Secured

Loan repayable on demand from bank (refer note 15.2 and note 15.3)
Current maturities of long term loan {refer note 15.1})

Total

4.35
(3.09})

1.26

602.74

72.85
3.09

602.74

75.94 |

15.1 Terms of borrowings

(i) Vehicle Loan of T Nil (as at March 31, 2021: ¥ 0.24 million) is from ICICI Bank carvying an interest rate of 9.10% The loan is
repayable in 60 monthly instalments along with interest, from the date of loan i.e. February 15, 2017. The end date of the loan
is January 15, 2022 and the loan is secured way of hypothecation of the respective vehicie.

(i} Vehicle Loan of ¥ Nil (as at March 31, 2021:% 3.76 million) is from Kotak Mahindra Prime carrying an interest rate of 7.87%
The loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalments along with interest, from the date of loan i.e. October 26,2017, The end date of
the loan is October 1, 2022 and the loan Is secured way of hypothecation of the respective vehicle,

(iii) Vehicle Loan of ¥ Nil (as at March 31, 2021:% 0.35 millicn) Is from Toyota Financial Services (I} Limited carrying an interest
rate of 8.85% The loan is repayable in 60 monthly instalments along with interest, from the date of loan i.e. April 25, 2017. The
end date of the loan is April 20, 2022 and the loan is secured way of hypothecation of the respective vehicle.

15.2 The Group has taken overdraft facilities.

These facilities are repayable on demand and are secured primarily by way of first charge on the book debts of Innovsource
Services Private Limited ¥909.91 million (as on March 31, 2021: ¥586.41 million) (pari passu charge) and also on the current
assets of the co-borrower a) V5 Global Services Private Limited ¥ 788.86 million (as on March 31, 2021: ¥ 582,24 million) b)
Affluent Global Services Private Limited ¥ 182,73 million {as on March 31, 2021:%109.91 million) and c} CBSI India Private
Limited T 215.65 million {refer note 10 for details of trade receivables). The facllity Is bearing an interest rate of 6.95% p.a. (as

at March 31, 2021; 6.80%p.a)

15.3 Innovsource Services Private Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of FirstMeridian Business Services Limited has obtained an
overdraft facility from ICICI bank. The facilitles are repayable on demand and are secured by way of pari passu charge on the
current assets and moveable plant and machinery of Innovsource Services Private Limited. This facility is bearing an interest

rate of 7.75%p.a.

15.4 The Group has not received any fund from any person or entity, including foreign for the purpose of lending, investing or

providing guarantee or security.

15.5 During the year, the Group was not required to file any charge or satisfaction of charge to Registrar of Companies,

15.6 The Group has not been declared as a wilful defaulter by the banks and has been regular in satisfying its dues, outstanding to

banks.

15.7 The Group doesn‘t have any unsecured borrowings as at the end of the year.

15.8 In relation to the specific purposes term loans and borrowings as disclosed under Non-current borrowings, the Group has used

the funds for the purposes for which they were taken.

15.9 The Group is not required to submit quartetly statements to the baj

sf,bTed on the books of accounts.




FirstMeridian Business Services Limited

{formerly known as FlrstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are ¥ in million unless otherwise stated

16 Other financial llabillties

16.1 This represents non-controlling interests put option pertaining to Affluent Global Services Private Limlted,

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 |As at March 31, 2021
Non-current
Mon-controlling interests put option liabilty (refer note 16.1, 16.2 and 16.3) = 122,78
Deferred consideration (refer note 16.4} 53.83 -
53.83 122.78
Current
Accrued compensation to employees 2,285.55 1,639.53
Security deposits payable 2.16 2.83
Interest accrued but not due - 0.43
Contingent consideration 41.72 38.81
Deferred consideration (refer note 16.5) 247.64 =
Others 107.07 78.84
Total 2,684.14 1,760.44 |

16.2 As per the advance agreement dated QOctober 31, 2020, the Group has made a payment of ¥ 17.5 million during the financial
year ended March 31, 2021 to one of the shareholder of one of the subsidiary (Affluent Global Services Private Limited), which
has been adjusted against the put liability option with respect to acquisition of remaining shares of the said subsidiary at a future

date as per the respective shareholder's agreement.

16.3 During the year ended March 31, 2022, as per the settlement agreement dated November 14, 2021, 4.76% of the shares of
Affluent Global Services Private Limited were transferred from the existing shareholders to the FirstMeridian Business Services
Limited (Parent company). Further, the Parent company is committed to acquire the remaining shares in Affluent at a future

date as per the respective shareholder's agreement.

16.4 This represents deferred consideration pertaining to Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited with respect to 25% of the liability to be

discharged In the future.

16.5 The Group acquired 75% equity of Rlabs Enterprise Services Limited, pursuant to a share purchase agreement dated February
02, 2022 at a cash consideration of 2 452.23 miilion and deferred consideration of ¥ 247.64 million,

17 Provisions

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31,

2021
Non current:
Provision for gratuity (refer note 32) 556.36 413.62
556.36 413.62
Current
Provision for compensated absence 316.88 216.39
316.88 216.39 |

18 Trade payables

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Trade payables

-Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 21.79 12.04
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 328.74 172.11
Total 350.53 184.15

18.1 The average credit period of trade payables is 30-45 days. No interest j$ c?a rged by vendors iIf paid within the credit period.




0L LSL I8'PP0°T

T E 89¢C

5've 11°ST

PO 0EL 70°L10°T
T20C

1€ yasey je sy

ZTOZ ‘TE YXHeH v sy

SSRNGE]J JURLIND JDR0

-dno.sy 3Y3 AQ S1RP NP 2UJ SB PAJIP|SUOI UB3Q SEY 3P ID0AL BU3 'a|npayds Burebe syl Jo vonRURSRId 4o Sasodind By) Jod

16 TP ST ITT [SETTNTS)
QL 1T - S25[40I93UT WNIPS|Y PUR |JEWS 01|y
SIBYIO
- = = = - SIRYI0
- - - N = S2SUAIAUT WNIPS}Y PUB [[EWS ‘0O
sparndsia
1Z0Z ‘1€ YaleW je sy
JEOA T
SIEDA £ UBY] 20N siealk g-T ARIAZ - T ueys s5a7 sanp peliqun SIE|N3IHEY
r0 85°S o't 76°901 £5°¢ie R0
- - {60 z8'02 - SPSUICIRUT WP} PUE J[BWS 0
S840
= = - E - S8Y10
- " o & - SOSUAISIUT WRIPSK pUe §|ews ‘ol
peIndsia
ZTO0T "I£ Yoien je sy
dGoA |
SIRBA ¢ uRy) SI0W saeal -7 Jeahz - T ueys ssa sanp papiqun siRjNIIHEd
Sa]qeAed =peds] JO bujeby
£Z UoRas J9pun
ainypuadxs ajqINpap B SB Yduemo|esip Jo asodind sy 10y ‘asudiaqua jjews
ayy oy pred Ajlergoe aJe SA0Qe Se SONP 1STIRJUI IYI UBYM IBP Yons |pun ‘aead
250 990 Guips29ns 2y} Ul U3Ad B|qeARd pue anp 3S3U9JU| JAYWNY Jo Junowe syt (1)
JeaA bupunodoe
- - ay3 Jo pud ay3 1€ pledun GujUIBLIS] PUEB PINJOOE 15D43JU) JO JUNOWE ayl (A)
PV GIWSIW W JSpun pawads 35a493u1 a3 Buippe Inoupm Inq (1ea4 auy
Gunnp Aep pajuodde ay) puodaq 1nq pled uasq aaey yaym) juswied Bupew
- - ul Aejep o pouad ayy 10) Iqeied pue anp jsasau Jo junowe a3yl (A1)
Aep paawmodde sy puciaq sanddns ayy o] apew
= - juswded sy Jo sunowe sy3 ypm Buoje pled jsalsyu) jo junowe syl (m)
Jeai Bupunoooe sy
820 SE0 10 pus 3y} e se Jaddns Aue 03 predun BuiuRWSg WO NP Jsausagur (1)
Jeai Bugunodoe
6T'TT 8/°0C Byl 40 pud 213 Je se 13)|ddns Aue 03 pledun Bujuiewy Junowe jedpulg (1)
1c0c
‘TEYMRM IR SY | TTOT ‘IE YMEN Je SY sipjnoiled

6T

€81

{1o¢ a3IWsSK) 9007 PV juawidoj2Aag Sos1IdIalug WNIpay PUe [[EWS ‘0401 943 JO ZZ UOI}03s Japun palinbad sainsopsig Z'8T1

PIIEIS SSIMIDLI0 SSIUN UOIFIWE U] 3 S4B SJUNOWE ||y

TTOT ‘TE YoIRW Papus 1234 8y} 10} SIUSUBILLS |IDUBU]Y PIIBP]I0SUO) BY) 0} SIJON

{pajiwn ajeald 5901A135 SSIUISNY UR|PUIWISIIY SE UMOLD| A|dauii04)
PIWT SDIAISS SSIUISNY UBIPLIDWISIIY



FirstMeridian Business Services Limited
{formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

All amounts are ¥ in million unless otherwlse stated

20

20,1

21

22

23

Revenue from operations

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale of services 28,599.25 21,102.86
Sale of products 21.98 -
Total 28,621.23 21,102.86

Reconclliation of revenue recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss with the contracted price

For the year ended

For the year ended

RRNticUias March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contracted price with the customers 28,621.81 21,095.98
Add / (Less}: Discounts, rebates, refunds, credits, price concessions (0.58) 6.88
Revenue from contracts with customers {as per consolidated statement of 28,621.23 21,102.86

profit and loss)

Other income

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Interest Income on:

- Bank deposits (at amortised cost) 40.87 47.12

- Staff loan - 0.02

- Security deposits (at amortised cost) 2.759 2.58

- Income tax refund 10.19 51.95
Gain on account of early termination of leases 1.01 2.20
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1.57 -
Provision no longer required 7.70 12.26
Net gain arising on fair valuation/settlement of put liability - 12.84
Net gain arising on foreign exchange 8.10 -
Miscellaneous income 0.34 9.93
Total 72.53 138.90
Employee benefits expense

For the vear ended

For the year ended

earticulane March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Salaries and wages 24,629.44 18,408.59
Contribution to provident and other funds (refer note 32) 2,188.46 1,636.07
Gratuity (refer note 32) 14.36 13.23
Staff welfare expenses 116.84 44.80
Employee stock option amortisation {net of forfelture) (refer note 36) 99.55 10.19
Total 27,048.65 20,112.88

Finance costs

For the year ended

For the year ended

Ranticualars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Interest on borrowings 16.11 9.39
Interest on lease liability (refer note 29) 21.39 15.27
Others 4,84 4.46
Total 42.34 20.12




FirstMerldian Business Services Limited

{formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)
Notes to the Consolidated Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are ¥ in million unless otherwise stated

24

25

25.1

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 47.12 39.60
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (refer note 29} 99.44 81.11
Amortisation of intangible assets 229.02 644.78
Total 375.58 765.49
Other expenses

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Auditor's remuneration (refer note 25.1)
Communication expenses

Power and fuel

Rent {refer note 29)

Repairs and maintenance

Insurance

Discount allowed

Rates and taxes

Provision for allowance for doubtful trade and other receivables
Bad debts and other receivables written off
Professional and consultancy fees

Recruitment and training expenses

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Printing and stationary

Subcontracting charges

Travelling and conveyance

Net (0ss arising on foreign exchange

Expense towards corporate social responsibility (CSR) (refer note 25.2)
Consumables

Loss on fair valuation/settlement of put option liability
Miscellaneous expenses

Total

12.24 9.34
28.17 24.83
20.11 16.23
36.23 37.73
31.63 25.52
7.00 3.47
6.29 -
0.63 6.69
11.75 12,98
0.91 0.43
411.29 260.70
23.35 15.79
- 3.17
13.91 11.48
231.63 133.54
33.71 14.99
- 0.05
6.19 10.45
12.61 6.07
38.17 =
52.08 36.95
977.90 630.41

Payments to auditors

For the year ended

For the year ended

25.2

Nature of CSR activities

Details of related party transactions
Provislon in respect of CSR as at the end of the year

\

Donation to Shanti
Bhavan Educational
Trust
'- Education

NA
3.15

Rarticulans March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
a) For statutory audit 8.50 5.40
b} For tax audit 1.07 0.92
c) For other services 2.67 3.02
Total 12.24 9,34
Corporate Soclal Responsibility (CSR)
Particul For the year ended | For the year ended
articufars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amount required to be spent by the Group during the year 6.19 5.69
Amount of expenditure incurred 6.13 10.03
Shortfall/{excess paid) as at the end of the year 0.06 (4.34)
Total of previous years shortfall/(excess paid) at the beginning of the year (refer 3.09 7.43
note 25.3)
Reason for shortfall Refer note 25.3 below NA

-Ponatlon to Rotary
Bangalore IT Corridor
Charitable Trust for
Container Classroom
*-Healthcare




FirstMeridian Business Services Limited

(formerly known as FirsiMeridian Business Services Private Limited)

MNotes to the ad Fi St s for the vear ended March 31, 2022
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26 Tax Expense

lidated stat

t of profit or loss consists of

26.1 1 tax enpense In the ¢

Particuiars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year anded
March 32, 2021

Current kax expense/(raversai):

| lnrgspect of the gurrent Yyear 73.68 34,52
n respect of the prior year 0.19 (0.64)
73.87 33,88
|Deferrad tax {credit}/charge:
| In respect of the turrent vaar (refer note 8) {186.37) 6.54
(186.37) 6.54
Total Income tax {cradit)/expanse recognised In the reporklng wear {112.50) 40.42
A2 e
6.2 Income tax expenses reconclliation
The recenciliation between the provisian of Income tax of the Group and amounts computed by applying the Indian statutory Income tax rate to profit/ (loss) before taxes is as follows:
Partlculars For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Current tax:

Profit/{loss) before tax 228.42 (296.14)
Incame tax rate {including surcharge) 25.17% 25.17%
Income tax axpense calculated (Including surcharga) 57.49 {(74.54)
Deferrad tax asset nok recognised 25.34 .63

|Effects of exoenses that are not deductible in idetermining taxable profits 15.34 11.05

Deferred tax reversal on goodwill 90,54

B011AA tax incentives {213.34) (61.00}
Ner effect of asferrad tax liability created for earier years .60 74.54

Others 2.07 (0.86)
(Yncome tax (credit) / exj recognised In tha tat of profit or joss (112,50) 40.42

Mote et \

During the year ended March 31, 2021, the Parent and its subsidiaries had decided to exergise the option of lower tax rate availabl

ke under Section 115BAA of the Income Tax Act, 1961, as

miroduced by Taxation Lews (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019, with effact from FY 2019-20. Accordingly, the Parent and its subsidiaries have written off accurmulated MAT credit of £ 39,73 millign

in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss.

26.3 Income tax expense In the Consolidated Other Comprehensive Income consists of
|I g For the year ended For tha year ended
ki March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
|
Arising on incomes/ (exp ) gnised in other compreh ve Income
Gainfiloss) on remeasurements of the defined benefit plans (2.82) (1.73)
I kax exp e Ised In other comprehensive income {2.33_1 (1.?3!

26.4 Deferred Tax

Tha Group has not recognised deferred tax asset, of ¥ #33,49 million for the year ended March 21, 2022 (® 0.68 milllon for the vear ended March 1, 2021), with respect o Its tax losses and
Jther temporary differences as It is unable to quantify the probablity of Its off-set against estimated immediate future profits, The estimated future profits are based on estimated business plan,

hence, the recognition is sensitive to the changes In the business pian.

Detalls of the amount of deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses, and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax asset ks recognised In the balance sheet:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 20231

| Business losses

|Carry forward depreciation

113.77

£.04

116.04
742

The Urirecognised tax credits with respect to business losses will expire between Assessment year 2027-2029

26.5 During the year ended March 31, 2022, the Group does not have any transaction that were not recorded in the books of acoounts and ware surrendered or disclosed in the income bax

assessmants under the Income Tax Act, 1961,
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27

274

Eamings par equity share
The earnings and welghted average number of ordinary shares used In the calculation of basic earnings per share are as follows:
For the year ended For the year endad
Particilars March 33, 2022 March 31, 2021
Baslc earnlngs per eaulty share has been computed as under:
Profit/{loss) for the vear atiributable to the owners of the company (net of share Issue expensas) 337.54 (236.56)
Welahted averaqe number of @Quity shares outstanding during the vear {in million) 72.28 72.22
Faca val t share (¥) 10.00 10.00
Earnings per equity share () - Basic 4.67 (4.66)
For tha year ended For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Diluted earnings par equity share has been computed as under:

million
Face value per share (¥)

Earnings per equity share () - Diluted

Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to the owners of the company (net of share lxsue expenses) 337.54 (336.55)

Welghted average number of equity shares as adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during the year (In 74.54 2.82
10.00 10.00
4,53 (4.66)]

*The earnings for the year ended March 31, 2021 being a loss, the potential equity shares are not considered as dilutive and accordingly DI

uted EPS s same as Basic

EPS,

The weighted average number of equity shares for the purpose of diluted earnings per share regonclles to the ghted average ber of gquity shares used In the calculation of basic earnings p
For the year ended For the year ended

Earicalacs March 31, 2022 March 21, 2021

Welghted average number of equity shares used W tha calculation of basic earnings per share 72.28 72.22

Shares deemed to be issued for no conslderation in respect of:

- emplovea share aptlon 2.26 0.60

Waelghted av: numbar of equity shares used In the ca lluted earnl are 74.84 71.82
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28

28.1

Contingent labliities and Commitmants

Contingent ilabllitles (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
Claims not acknowledoed as debts (refer note 28.2) 35.20 17.16
Income tax 7.23 -

2,2 Claims not acknowledged as debts principally rejates to cases lodged by employees against the Group. It also Indudes cases lodged by employees sgainst the erstwhile Holding Company relating

28.3

28.4

29

to staffing business, which are now a contingent llability for the Group In lleu of the purchase of staffing b

from the

hile Holding Company. The management balleves, based on issues

Involved, that no material liabllities will accrug In raspect of these cases and accordingly no cash outflow Is expacted and the management believes that based on the nature of cases, the claims

are not expected to be material.
Providant fund

On February 28, 2019, the Hon'ble Supreme Court of Indla dallverad a judgment clarifying the principles that need to be applied In determining the components of salaries and wages on which
Provident Fund (PF) contributions need to be made by astablishments. The Group has been advised by the expert that there are varlgus Interpretative challenges on the application of the
Judgment retrospectively, The management do not expect any oubfiow of resources as there was no demand ralsed for the above matker a5 a part of audit parformed by Reglonal Provident Fund

Authority for the subsidiary of the Grouo.
Commitments

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not provided for (net of capltal advances)

7.23

1.08

Leases

29.1 The effect of depreciation and Interest related to right-of-use assel and Iease labluty are reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss under the heading “deprediation and
amortisation expenses” and "finance costs® respectively under note no 24 and 23 respactively,

29.4
29.5

29.6

29.7

29.8

299

| 10% p.a. |
| 7.5% pa.
Cat 1 right-of ts
egory of right-of-use asse

Farticulars Office Space Furniture and fittings Totak
|Balance as at April 01, 2020 140.62 0.40 141.02
Additions for the year 190.32 - 190.32
Depreciation for the year (80.92) (0.19) {B1.11)
Deletions for the year (23.18) - {23.18)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 226.84 0,21 22705
Acquired through business combination (refer note 38) 13.45 0.00 13.45
Additions for the year 167.70 0.00 167.70
Depreciation for the year (99.35) (0.09) (99.44)
Detations for the year (11.32) (0.12) (11.44)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 297.32 0.00 297.32 |

The Group has aot revalued Its right-of-use assets during the yesrand and therefore Schedula

11 disclosura requirements with respect to fair value detalls are not applicable.

T he break- ~CUrren Tabil H

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021

Current lease labilltles 105.08 70.94

Mon-current lease liabilltles 208.53 184,14

Total 313.61 235.08 |

The followling Is the movement In lease llabllities:

Particulars Amoun
DPalance as at Aprh 01, 2020 150.85
Additlons for the year 184,18
Deletlons for the year (25.39)
Finance cost accrued during the year 15.27
Payment of lease labilitles during the year (B9.83)
Balance a3 at March 31, 2021 235.08
Aoquired through business combination (refer note 38} 15.48
Additions for the year 163,88
Deletlons for the year (12.13)
Finance cast accrued during the year 21.39
Payment of lease llabilitles during the year (109.09)
Balancae as at March 31, 2022 215.61

Partlculars

an undiscounted
March 31, 2021

basis:

Total cashflow's disclosure @

ak
Mot later than 1 year 126.37 86,10
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 221,06 181.96
Later than S years 7.895 2.62
[Tatal 355,38 | 270.68 |
The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to Its lease liabllities, Lease liabllities are monitored within tha Group's treasury functlon.
nts r I i 055
For the year ended For the year ended
particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Depreclation expense on right-of-use assets 99.44 a1.11
Interast expense on lease liabilitles 21.3% 15.27
Expense relating to short term leases 36.23 37.73
Gain on account of early ter lon of leases 1.01 2.20

The total cash outilow for leases is ¥ 145,31 milkion (¥ 127.56 million for the year ended March 31, 2021) {includes cash outflow from short term and long term lgases).

M
J /
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30 Related parties transactions

30.1 Names of the related parties and related party relationships

Particulars

Relationship

Manpower Solutions Limited (Mauritius)

Innovsource Services Private Limited (ISER}

Innovsource Facilities Private Limited (IFAC)

V5 Global Services Private Limited (V5)

Affluent Global Services Private Limited (AGS)

CBSI India Private Limited (CBSI) {w.e.f. September 29, 2020)
R Labs Enterprise Services Limited (w.e.f. Feb 02, 2022)
Profitum Management Consulting LLP

Key Management Personnel

Sudhakar Balakrishnan

Ankur Vidyasagar Gulati

Manish Mehta

Niladri Mukhopadhyay (tll March 31, 2021)
Nllay Pratik

Jiten Umesh Poojara

Somwrita Biswas (till February 09, 2022)
Satya Prasan Rajguru

Shailesh Narayanrao Ardhapurkar

Satish Srinivasan

Amiltabh Sagar

Anurag Gupta

Manmeet Singh

Anand C

Vamshidhar G (w.e.f. December 20, 2021)
Amit Chitale { w.e.f June 01, 2020)

Tejas Sanghvi (till May 31, 2020)

Sanjay Gupta

Monali Pramod Joshi

Ira Dash Rajguru
Archana Shailesh Ardhapur

Ultimate Holding Company

Subsidiary

Subsldiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary

Subsidiary company

Enterprise controlled by the

relative of Key
Managerial Personnel of VS -

Director

Non-executive director

Non-executive director

Non-executive director

Non-executive director

Non-executive director

Non-executive director

Dlrector of subsidiary

Whole-time Director of subsidiary
Group Chief Financial Officer

Group Chief Human Resources Officer
President - IT Staffing

Deputy CED - V5

CEQ - General Staffing & Allied Services
Head M8A

Chief Financial Officer of ISER

Chief Financial Officer of ISER

Chief Financial Officer of V5

Group Company Secretary

Relative of Key Managerial Personnel of subsidiary
Relative of Key Managerial Personnel of subsidiary

P
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30
30.2

30.3

30.4

Related partles transactions {cont’d)

Details of related party transactions

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Manpower Solutions Limited {Mauritius)

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel {(Including subsidiaries) *
Remuneration to relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Reimbursement of expenses to Key Managerial Personnel

Professional and consultancy fees paid to Key Managerlal Personnel
Professional and consultancy fees paid to relative of Key Managerial Personnel

Share application money pending allotment from KMP

Sale of bullding
Profitum Management Consulting LLP (Partner-Ira Rajguru, wife of Satya Prasan
Raiguru}

138,53

8.00

78.25

57.84
7.86
0.86
6.25
1.36

11.60

Details of related party closing balances

For the year ended

For the year ended

partcuiSte March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Accrued compensation to Key Managerial Personnel 11.31 -
Accrued reimbursement of Key Managerial Personnel expenses of subsidiaries 0.15 0.15
Trade payable to Key Managerial Personnel of subsidiaries 0.76 0.55
Share Application money pending allotment

Manpower Solutions Limited (Mauritius) 840.02 -
KMP 78.25 -

Compensation of Key Managerial Personnel
The remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel during the year was as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2022

For the year ended
March 31, 2021

Short-term employee benefits 66.94 50.37
Post-employment benefits - -
Other long-term benefits - -
Termination benefits - -
Share-based payment 71.59 7.47
138.53 57.84

Total
Sitting fee paid to directors

*Notes:

(i) The above Managerial remuneratlon excludes value of gratuity and compensated absences since the same is ascertained on aggregated
basis for the Group as a whole by the way of actuarial valuation and separate values attributable to Key Managerial Person are not

(i) Total employee stock compensation expense for the year ended March 31, 2022 and year ended March 31, 2021 includes a charge of ¥

71.59 milllion and ¥ 7.47 million towards key managerial personnel,

ey
e
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31 Segmaent information
The Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director of the Company has been Identifled as the Chief Operating Decislon Maker ("CODM"} as defined by Ind AS 108,
operating segments, The CODM evaluates the Group’s performance and allocates resources based on an analysis of varlous performance indicators by service
offerings. Accordingly, segment information has been presented for service offerings.

31,1

31.2

During the year, the Company has identifled General Staffing and Allied Services, Global Technology Solutions and ‘Other HR Service” as separate business segment,

It is based on increased focus and business review carrled out by the Chief Operating Decislon Maker (CODM) of the Company.

The operating segment comprises of the fellowing:
a) General Staffing and Allied Services
Comprises of staffing solutions, workforce automation solutions and trade marketing solutions.

b) Global Technology Solutions

Comprises of contract staffing sofutions for niche mid to senior level positions across global captive centers, product-based companies and other technology
companies and Contract staffing solutions for entry to mid-level roles across technology companies.

¢) Other HR Services

Cornprises of permanent recruibment, recruitment process outsourcing, pharmaceutical and healthcare staffing and faciity management,

Segment revenues and profits

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment for the year endad March 31, 2022:

General Staffing and Global Technology Othear HR Services Unallocatad Total
Allied services Solutions

Revenue:
External revenue 25,840.77 2,385.64 394.82 28,621.23
Total segment revenue 25,840.77 2,385.64 394,82 - 23,621.23
Segment results 228.27 191.53 12.07 {161.11} 270.76
Finance costs - - - 42.34 42,34
Profit/{Loss) before tax 228.27 191.53 12.07 {203.45) 228.42
Income tax - - - {112.50) (112,50}
Profit/ (Loss) after tax 228.27 191.53 1207 {90.95) 340.92
Segment assets 4,340.32 1,677.87 491,97 3,518.32 10,028.49
Segrment liabilitles 4,197.85 699,51 118.16 1,028.14 6,043.67
Capital employed (Segment 142.47 978.36 373.81 2,490.18 3,984.82
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by reportable segment for the year ended March 31, 2021;

General Staffing and Global Technology Other HR Services Unallocated Total

Allied services Solutions

Revenue:
External revenue 19,651.85 1,041.60 360.42 8,99 21,102.86
Total segment revenua 19,691.85 1,041.60 360.42 8.99 21,102.86
Sepmant results {185.47} {71.26) (27.55) 17.26 {267.02)
Finance costs - - - 29.12 29.12
Profit/ {Loss) before tax {185.47} {71.26) (27.55) (11.86) {296.14)
Income tax - - - 40.42 40.42
Profit/ {Loss) after tax (185.47) {71.26} (27.55) {52.28) {336.56)
Other information
Segment assets 3,355.73 770.41 125.07 1,983.54 6,234.75
Segment llabllities 3,133.43 237.50 139.67 438.18 3,948.78
Capltal employed (Segment 222.30 532,91 (14.60} 1,545.36 2,285.97

assets- Segment llablitdes)
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31 Segment information (cont'd)}

31.3 Other segment information

Depreciation and amortisation
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Geperal Staffing and Allied 200.72 477.73
services
Global Technology Solutions 159.39 261.26
Other HR Services 10.94 20,22
Unallocated 4.53 6.28
Total 375.58 765.49
Additions to non-current assets*
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
General Staffing and Allied 202.43 235,27
services
Global Technology Solutions 27.37 12,58
Other HR Services 5.47 4.35
Unallocated 201.11 0.11
Total 436.38 252.31
*The amounts exclude additions to financial instruments, deferred tax assets and net defined benefit assets.

Of the total additions to non-current assets, ¥ 46,59 million in the financial year ended March 31, 2022 (¥ 47.67
million during the year ended March 31, 2021) has been acquired on account of business combination.

31.4 Revenues from major products and sarvices
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue from continuing operations from its

major products and services.

For the year ended For the year ended
March 21, 2022 M
General Staffing and Allied 25,840.77 19,691.85
services
Global Technology Solutions 2,385.64 1,041.60
Other HR Services 394.82 360.42
Unallocated = 8.99
Total _28,621.23 | 21,102.86
31.5 Geographical information
Revenue from operations
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2022 |  March 31,2021
India 28,381.36 21,102.28
Foreian 239.87 0.58
Total 28,621.23 21,102.86
There are no non-current asset located outside India.

31.6 Information about major customers
Included in revenues arising from General Staffing and Allied services of € 5,686.52 million (year ended March

31, 2021: ¥ 2,155.61 million) which arose from sale of services to the Group's largest customer which accounts
for 28.88% (year ended March 31, 2021: 10.21%) of the total revenue. No other customer contributed 10
percent or more to the Group's revenue in any of the reported years.
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32 Employee banafits
i} Dafined Contribution Plan

The Group's contribution to provident fund and other funds is 2 1,939.84 million {during the year ended March 31, 2021 is ¥ 1,636.07 million} has been recognised In the Consolldated

Statement of Proflt and Loss under the head employee benefits expense,
ii} Defined Banafit Plans:
Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefit gratulty plan in India (funded}, The group’s defined benefit gratulty plan is a final salary plan for employees, which requires contributlon to be made to a

separately adminlstered fund.

The fund is managed by a trust which Is governed by the board of trustees, The board of trustees are responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definiticn of the

Investment strategy.

During the Ananclal year ended March 31, 2021, the Group has changed the benefit scheme In line with Fayment of Gratulty Act, 1972 by Increasing monetary celling from 21 million 1o
72 miMlon, for those employees who are getting beneflt as per Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972. Change in Nlabllity { If any) due to this scheme change Is recognised as past service cost.

A separate trust fund is created to manage the Gratulty plan and the contributions towards the trust fund is done as guided by rule 103 of Income Tax Rules , 1562,

{1} Salary rish:

Through its defined benefit plana the Group is expaosed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are datailed balow:

The present value of the defined beneflt plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of member. As such, an Increase In the salary of the members more than assumed

level will Increase the plan's Nability.
{2} Interest rate risk

& fall in the discount rate which i¢ linked to the G.Sec. Rate will increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall In the discount rate generally increases the

mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset.
{3} Investment Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan Nabllity )5 calculated using a discount rate which Is determined by reference to wmarket yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bends, If the return on plan asset Is below this rate, it will create a plan defick. Currently, for the plan in India, It has a relatlvely balanced mix of investments in government

securities, and other debt instruments.
{4) Longavity Risk:

Since the benefits under the plan is not payable for Iife time and payable tilt retirement age only, plan does not have any langewity risk.

Tha significant actuarial ptions used for the purposes of tha actuarial valuations were as fi

Particulars

Valuation as at

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

{I). Financlal assumptions
Discount rate {p.a.}

Salary escalation rate {p.a.)
Rate of employee turnover (p.a.)

(11}. Demographic assumptions
Maortallty rate

3.93%-7.12%
4.71%-10.00%

For service 5 years and below
Is 35% to 0% p.a. & for
service of 5 years and above is
5%to 6% p.a

TALM 2012-14

3.82%- 6.92%
2.62% - 10%

Far service 5 years and
below 15 35% to 47 %
p.a, b for service of 5

years and above Is
S%to 6% p.a

IALM 2012-14 |

Amounts recognised in C lidated Stat t of Profit and Loss in respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:
Particulars As 3t March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Current service cost 109.27 89.58
Net Interest expense 20,20 1681 |
Components of defined benefit costs 12947 106 29 |
Amount netted off in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss towards gratulty and related reimbursement right for {115.11} {93.16}
assoclate emplovees
Components of defined benefit costs after netting off reimbursement right for associate employees recognised in 14.36 13.23
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability
Actuarial loss/(galns) arising form changes in financial assumptions 85.63 {35.46)
hctuarial {galns)/loss arising form changes in demographic assumptions (10.64) 17.11
Actuarial loss arising form experience adjustments 10.20 42,96
Return on plan assets (excluding amount Included In net interest expense) (0.04) )]
Components of defined benefit costs before netting off reimt t right for i ployees recognised in 84.95 2.9
Consolidated Profit or Loss’
Amount netted off in the Other Comprehensive Income towards gratulty and related reimbursement right for associate (94.75) {30.89)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income {9.80) i {7.30)

Notes:

i) The Current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are included In the ‘employee benefits expense’ line item In the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

#l) The remeasurement of the net defined benefits liability Is Included in Other Comprehensive Income for the yearend.

ili} Gratulty expense as per Note 22 incfudes an amount of ¥ 4.07 million on account of full and finat settlement payable towards the employees resigned during the year ended March 31,

d. The nt included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As ak March 31, 2021
Funded*:
Present value of benefit obllgation at the end of the year 15.69 13.34
Fair value of plan assets at the and of the year (0.66) (2.18)
Funded status -Surplus 15.03 11.1
Unfunded:

541.68 398.39

Present value of benafit obligation at the end of the year
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year

A

Unfunded status -Surplus

llion Chk:h Is computed on accrual basls.
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A,

b.

C.

d.

Employee beneflts

i) Definad Contribution Plan

The Group's contribution to provident fund and other funds Is T 1,93%.84 milllon (during the year ended March 31, 2021 is ¥ 1,626.07 million) has been recognised in the Consolidated
Statament of Proflt and Loss under the head employee beneflts expense.

11} Dafined Banalit Plans:

Gratuity

The Group has a defined beneflt gratulty plan in India (funded). The group’s defined benefit gratuity plan Is a final salary plan for employees, which requires contribution to be made to a
separately administered fund.

The fund is managed by a trust which is governed by the board of trustees. The board of trustees are responsible for the administration of the plan assets and for the definition of the
Investment strategy.

During the Ainanclal year ended March 31, 2021, the Group has changed the beneflt scheme In line with Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 by Increasing monetary celling from ¥1 million to
22 million, for those employees who ara getting benefit as per Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, Change in llablity { If any) due to thls scheme change is recognised as past service cost.

A separate trust fund Is created to manage the Gratuity plan and the contributlons towards the trust fund Is done as guided by rule 103 of Income Tax Rules , 1962,

Through its defined benefit plans the Group is exposed to a number of risks, tha most significant of which ara detailed balow:

{1) Salary risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salarles of member. As such, an increase in the salary of the members more than assumed
level will increase the plan's liabllity.

(2) Interast rate risk

A fall in the discount, rate which is linked to the G.Sec. Rate will Increase the present value of the liability requiring higher provision. A fall in the discount rate generally increases the
mark to market value of the assets depending on the duration of asset,

{3) Investment Risk:

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which Is deterrnined by reference to market yletds at the end of the reporting period on
government bends. If the return on plan asset Is below this rake, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, It has a relatively balanced mix of investrents in government
securities, and other debt instruments.

{4) Longevity Rigk:

Since the benefits under the plan Is not payable for life time and payable tl retirement age only, plan does not have any longevity risk.

Thae significant actuarial itions usad for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follo
Particulars Valuation as at
Ag at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
{i). Financial assumptions
Discount rate {p.a,) 3.93%-7.12% 3.82%-~ 6.92%
Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 4.71%-10.00% 2.62% - 10%
Rate of emplaoyee turnover (p.a.} For service 5 years and below | For service 5 years and
is 35% te 70% p.a. & for below Is 35% to 47%
service of 5 years and above Is| p.a. & for service of 5
5%to 6% p.a years and above is
5%to 6% p.a
(il). Demographic assumptions
Mortality rate IALM 2012-14 TALM 2012-14
Amaunts recognised In C lidated Stat t of Profit and Loss In respect of these defined benefit plans are as follows:
Particulars As st March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Current service cost 109.27 59.58
Net Interest expense £0.20 16,81
Camp ts of definad benaefit costs 129,47 106.39
Amount netted off In the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss towards gratulty and related reimbursement right for {115.11) (93,16}
assoclate emolovees
Components of defined benefit costs after netting off reimbursement right for associate employeas recognised In 14,36 13.23
Consolidatad Stat t of Profit or Loss
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability
Actuarlal lossf{gains) arlsing form changes In financhal assumptions 85.63 {36.46)
Actuarlal {gains)/loss arsing form changes In demographic assumptions {10.84} 17.11
Actuarial loss arising form experience adjustments 10.20 42,96
Return on plan assets {excluding amount Included In net Interest expense) (0,04} {0.02)
Comp ts of dafined benafit costs before netting off reimbursement right for astociate amployses recognised in 84.95 23.59
Conscolidated Profit or Loss’
Amount netted off In the Other Comprehensive Income towards gratuity and related relmbursement right for assoclate (94.75) (30,89}
Camponents of defined benaefit costs recognlsed in other comprab ive incoma {9.80} {7.30)
Notes:

i} The Current service cost and the net interest expense for the year are indluded in the ‘employee benefits expense’ line item In the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
I} Tha remeasurement of the net definad benefits liabllity is included in Other Comprehensive Income for the yearend.
illy Gratuity expense as per Note 22 Includes an amount of ¥ 4.07 milllon on account of full and final settlement payable towards the employees resigned during the year ended March 38,

Tha amount included in the balance sheet arising from the entity's obligation in resp of its deflned benefit plans Is as follows:

Partlculars As at March 31, 2022 Ag at March 31, 2021
Funded®:

Present value of benefit chlination at the end of the vear 15.69 13.34
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the vear {0.66} [2.18)
Fundead status -Surplus 13.03 1116 |
Unfunded:

Present value of benefit obligation at the end of the year 541.68 398.39
Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year = -
Unfunded status -Surplus : S41.68 398.39 |

3
ability towards the full and final settlement of ¥ 4,07 milliogy which is computeyl on accrual basis.
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33 Financial instruments

33.1

33.2

A,

FInancial instruments by category

The carrying value and falr value of financial instruments by categories are as follows:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

or loss {FYTPL)
Non-Current
Non-controlling interests put option {Level 2)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Non=-Currant
| Other financlal assets
Current
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Loans
Other financial assets

Financial Liabilities measured at amortised cost
Non-Current

Borrowings

Lease liabilities

Deferred consideration
Current

Borrowings

Trade payables

Lease liabilities

Deferred consideration

Contingent consideration

Other financial llabillties

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit

843.70

2,255.04
2,500.74
311.06
1.00
1,690.41

208.53
53.83

602.74
350.53
105.08
247.64
41.72
2,394,78

122.78

609.91

1,330.90
491.23
668.54

0.20

1,255.87

1.26
164.14

75.94
184.16
70.94

38.81
1,721.63

The management believes that, the carrying amounts of financlal assets and financial liabilities measured at

amortised cost approximate their fair values.

Financial risk management objectives

The Group monitors and manages the financial risks to the operations of the Group. These risks includes credit

risk, liquidity risk and market risk.
Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial
loss to the Group. The Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties, as a means of
mltigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Group uses its own trading records to rate its major
customers. The Group's exposure to financial loss from defaults are continuously monitored.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to insufficiency of funds to meet the financial obligations. Liquidity Risk Management implies
maintenance of sufficient cash to meet obligations when due. The Group continuously monitoring forecast and

actual cash flows, and by assessing the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Financing facilities

The Group has access to financing facilities as described below, of which # 347.26 million were unused at the
reporting date (March 31, 2021: ¥ 427.15 million). The Group expects to meet its other obligations from
operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets. {refer note 15 for details on borrowings)

o ulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
fined bank overdraft facility
t used | 602.74 72.85
nt unused 347.26 427.15
. 950.00 500.00
/7 -
Y / T{% \/
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332 Financial instruments {Cont.}

C

Maturities of financial liabilities

Table showing maturity profile of non-derivative financial liabilities:
(Excludes maturity analyses of lease liabilities which has been disclosed in Note 29 of the consolidated financial statements)

Particulars Upto One year 1-5 years Total

As at March 21, 2022

Borrowing 602.74 - 602.74
Trade pavables 350.53 - 350.53
Other financial liabilities 2,684.14 60.00 2,744.14
As at March 31, 2021

Borrowing 75.94 1.26 77.20
Trade pavables 184.16 - 184.16
Other financial liabilities 1,760.44 - i,760.44

The above table details the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment
periods. The amount disclosed in the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilitles based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Group

may be required to pay.

Market risk
The rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk
comprises of currency risk and interest rate risk. In the normai course of business and in accordance with our policies, we manage these

risks through a variety of strategies.

i) Currency risk

The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group is domiciled in India and has its significant revenues and other major transactions in its functional currency i.e. INR. Accordingly
the Group is not exposed to currency risk. {refer note 10.7 for foreign currency receivables)

i} Interest rate risk
The risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group has borrowed funds at fixed rate of interest and so the Group is not exposed to any significant interest rate risk,

HARTERED

TANTS
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35

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to shareholders

through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt {borrowings disclosed in notes 15 and after deducting cash and bank balances disclosed In note
11) and equity of the Group {comprising issued capital, reserves and retalned earnings as disclosed in notes 13 and 14).

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at the year-end is as follows:

IParticuIars Ag at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Debik (A} 916.36 312.72
Cash and cash equivalenis {B) 2.500.74 491.23
Nat debt{Ci={A}-(B) {1,584,38) {178.51)
Equity (D} 3.984.82 2,285.97 |
Net debt to equity catie {C)/{D)} (39.76%} (7.81%}

Debt 1s defined as jong-term and short-term borrowings and lease liabilities as detailed in notes 15 and 29.
Bquity inciudes share capital and other equity of the Group as detalled in nates 13 and 14 respectively.

Fair Value Measurement

35.1 Fair value of the financial liability that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

35.2

35.3

35.4

Financial liabilities measured at Falr value

Fair value as at

March 31, 2021

Non-controlling interests put option
Deferred consideration

March 31, 20232

122.78

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the current year.

Financial liabilitles measured at Fair value

Fair valua hierarchy

Valuation technique(s)
and key input(s)

Non-controlling interests put option Level 2 Multiple of EBITDA
Consideration consideration Level 3 Multiple of future PBT
Deferred consideration Level 3 Multiple of future EBITDA

Reconcillation of Level 3 fair value

Deferred considaration

As at April 01, 2020

Additions during the year

Change recognised in profit or loss
Ag at March 31, 2021

Additions during the year

Change recognised in profit or loss
As at March 31, 2022

36.74
2.07

38.81
301.47
2.91

343.19
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FirstMeridian Business Services Limited
{formerly known as FirstMeridian Business Services Private Limited)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

All amounts are ¥ In million unless otherwise stated

37 Change in accounting policy for defined benefit obligation accounting for associate employeas
During the year, the Group has changed its accounting policy to present employee benefit expenses and income arising from
its right to reimbursement related to defined benefit obligation for the assoclate employees from gross to net basis.
Previously, the Group used to present the income and expense on a gross basis. Expenses were presented as a part of
Employee benefits expense under the head ‘Gratuity’ and actuarial component as a part of “*Other Comprehensive Income
{OCI)” and income was presented as a part of Revenue from operation under the head 'Sale of services ({Including recoverable

actuarial component routed through OCI)’,

The Group has reimbursable right to receive cost of employee benefit expenses related to defined benefit obligation for the
associate employees and based on this right, the Group believes that net accounting method is more approprlate and provides
more relevant information about the effects of this transaction. The Group has applied this change to the previous reported

year.

The above change in policy will result only in presentation change and not impact the overall profitability of the Group. Below

is a summary of the impact of the change in policy.

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Revenue from operations* 28,830.29 21,231.02 |
Adjustment: {
Impact of net accounting {209.06) (128.16)
Revenue from operation 28,621,23 21,102.86
Empioyee benefits expense* 27,162.96 20,210.1¢6
Adjustment:
Impact of net accounting (114.31) (97.28)
Employee benefits expense 27,048.65 20,112.88
Profit/(loss) after tax* 411.82 (313.45)
Adjustment:
Impact of net accounting {94.75) {30.88)
Deferred tax on above adjustment 23.85 7.77
Profit/(loss) for the year 340.92 (336.55)
Other comprehensive income* {63.92) (17.54)
Adjustment:
Impact of net accounting 94.75 30.88
Deferred tax on above adjustment {23.85) (7.77)
Other comprehensive income 6.98 5.57
Total comprehensive income* 347.90 (330.99)
Adjustment:
Impact of net accounting - -
Deferred tax on above adjustment - =
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year 347.90 (330.99)

*Note:

{i) As per audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2021.

Reconciliation between audited Total Equity and Total Equity

Fasticulars As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021 |
Total Equity {as per audited Consoclidated Financial Statements) 3,584.82 2,285.97
Adjustments: - -
Total Equity as per Consolidated Balance Sheet 3.984,82 2.285.97
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FirstMeridian Business Servicas Limited
ifi iy as Fl Services Private Limited}
Hotes 1o the Consolidated Financlal Statemeants for the year endad March 31, 2022

AH amounts are # In million unless otherwlse stated

38 Business combination (conk'd)

38,3 Assets acqulrad and labilitles recognised at the date of acquisition

iPastIcular COSI India Private Riabs Enterprises
| Limited Services Pyt Ltd.
[Corrant assets T “' R
|Casn and cash aquivalents 34.01 114,70
Trade and other recervablas 45.07 99.60
Orner finanaal assets 35.04 94,55
Other assets 2,29 16,99
| 137.31 315.84
[Non-r.urrant assets
|Propamy, plant and equipment .40 2.7
|Right-of-use aszet » 13.45
Gther (ntanglbles - 4.01
Deferrad tax assets (net) 4.32 4.57
Financial asseks .81
MNon-current tax assets (nei) i5.03 55.43
20,15 109.98
Current liabilltles
Borrowings - 1.35
Trade and other payables 56.83 94.43
Other current |labilities a.13 59.17
Othar Anancial liabilities 16,37 -
Lease liabiiities 9.94
Provisions. 4,38 01
B5.71 167920
Non-current Habilltles
BOrrowings 29.34
Lease liabifithes £.54
Prowisions 4,82 9.35
4.82 4%5.23
|
{Net assets acquired $5.93 322.69
==
|
Revenye for tha year andad 274.56 vo1.68
Expensas for the year endad 242,33 §99.49
Prafit befare tax for the yvear ended 32.23 94.75
Prafit after tax for the year ended 24.81 6B.88
38.9 dwill arising on acqg I
Particular CBSI India Private Cornucopla Rlabs
Limited
Total purchase considaration paid {A) 107.50 - 452.23
Daferrad conslderation (B) - 35.75 35583
Het assets acquired (net of goodwill) (€} 65.93 2.50 222.69
Value attributable to cllent relationship (D) 22.64 15.74 301.05
OTL an client relatlonship {E) 5.7 - 75,77
Clisnt relationship (net of taxes) {Fy=(D}-[ E} 16.94 i15.74 225.28
|
| Difference c 1 ag guodwlill (A)+(B)-(C)-{F} 24.63 18,51 360.08
38 Business comblnatlon {cont'd)
38.10 Goodwill on acquisition
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31,
Opeaning Balance 679.77 635.69
Add: On ac i of busi during tha year 360.08 43.14
Total 1,038.85 478.77
38.11 Net cash outflow on acquisition of busl
Partlculars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31,
1
Consideration pald in cash 452,23 107.50
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balancas acquired 114.70 (36.51)
Yotal 337.53 70.99
A \
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